

North East Lincolnshire TARGET CLUB

Rules and Constitution (Approved AGM, 26 January 2017)

(Note: Certain of the Club Rules incorporate legal requirements under the Firearms Acts. These may be subject to legislative change and are therefore indicated by an asterisk.)

1. **NAME** - The name of the Club is the North East Lincolnshire Target Club and shall hereafter be referred to as "The Club".

2. **OBJECT** - The object of The Club shall be to promote the amateur sport of target shooting and community participation in the same.

3. **CONSTITUTION** - The Club shall consist of Members who may be one of nine classes as defined under MEMBERSHIP. The Club's fiscal year shall run from 1st January to 31st December for that year. The names of the Members in the Register on 1st April of each year and thereafter as elected by the Committee shall be taken to be the Members for the year to the 31st December for that year.

3.1 No addition, deletion or amendment shall be made to the Rules and Constitution of The Club, with the exception of changes required in connection with matters relating to licensing requirements, except at an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) or Annual General Meeting (AGM) of The Club.

4. MEMBERSHIP

4.1 Membership is open to all persons and The Club will not discriminate against any person on the grounds of ethnicity, nationality, sexual orientation, religious belief, sex, age, or disability except as a necessary consequence of the requirements of the sport and UK Firearms legislation*.

4.2 All persons wishing to become Full Members shall each complete an application form which will be considered by the Committee following completion of the legally prescribed Probationary period*, or such longer period as may be required to ensure applicants are proficient in the safe handling of firearms and ammunition which shall be assessed when the applicant takes the Club's Final Safety Test.

4.3 The Committee may refuse membership, or remove it, only for good cause such as conduct of character likely to bring The Club or sport into disrepute or where acceptance would be contrary to the Firearms Acts* or specific police advice regarding the Member/applicant. In each case, acceptance or rejection will be notified to the applicant as soon as practicable.

(i) All persons wishing to become Full Members shall each complete and deliver an application form which will be considered by the Committee.

(ii) All persons wishing to become one of the category of Members (B) to (F) and (H) shall each complete and deliver an application form which will be considered by the Chairman and/or Secretary.

(iii) The application form will be in such a form as the Committee shall decide;

(iv) Until acceptance, no applicant will have any rights to be on The Club premises.

4.4 *There shall be *9 categories only of Members:

- (A) Full Members
- (B) Visiting Members
- (C) Probationary Members
- (D) Junior Members
- (E) Airgun Members
- (F) Honorary Members
- (G) Social Members
- (H) Guest Members
- (I) Lifetime Full Member

All applicants for Membership shall give a minimum of 48 hours notice of their intention to visit The Club.

4.5 The above categories are now defined as:-

4.6 (A) **Full Members** – Full Members are defined as those Members who have successfully completed the prescribed Probationary period and have passed the Club's Final Safety Test and have been accepted by the Committee. Full Members may use The Club premises for their normal use subject to the instructions of the Club Chairman or a duly authorised delegate and subject to the rights of The Club as set out in the agreement between The Club and the Ground Landlord and to any powers provided in law to the Police*.

4.7 Only Full Members shall have the right to vote at an EGM or AGM or be elected as a voting member of the Club's Committee.

4.8 Full Membership shall include the Member's spouse or partner subject to the spouse or partner completing an application form and being so accepted. If the spouse or partner wishes to handle firearms or ammunition then that person will be expected to undertake the probationary training as described in 4(C)(vi) below.

(i) Full Members shall at all times have the right to record a vote should there be a proposal to alter the Club's Rules and Constitution which, with the exception of changes required in connection with matters relating to licensing requirements, can only be made at an AGM (or EGM called for that purpose), which must be preceded by 21 days notice including notice of such proposal.

(ii) Full Members shall at all times use The Club premises with proper regard to the safety of themselves and others in and around those premises.

(iii) Full Members shall obey all The Club's Rules.

*(iv) *A lapsed Full Member may be required to undergo the full probation period should they wish to rejoin The Club at a future date.*

(v) Persons wishing to become Full Members who are Members of another shooting club and/or are in possession of a current Firearms Certificate shall be liable to pay, in full, a Joining Fee in addition to the normal Full Member subscription. The amount of such Joining Fee shall be determined annually by the Committee. Applicants for Full Membership will be expected to provide written proof of identity and those not in possession of a FAC will be expected to provide a suitable written reference in the form referred to in 4(C)(ii) below.

4.9 (B) **Visiting Members** - A Visiting Member shall be any person introduced to The Club by an existing Member in person on any single day, the names of such Visitors shall be entered into the Visitors Book, which shall be kept for that purpose. Attendance by Visiting Members shall be limited to 2 per Member on

any single day and Visitors shall be limited to not more than 3 visits per year. Visiting Members so introduced will in all respects have the same status as a Social Member but only for the day. It will be the responsibility of the Club Member who invites the Visitor to notify a Club official of the visit prior to the visitor being admitted to The Club premises.

(C) ***Probationary Members** - A Probationary Member will be required to:-

(i) *supply 2 Official Documents to prove identity;*

(ii) **supply written proof that they are responsible persons and that their training in firearms will not prove a danger to Members of the public. This shall be written by a responsible person who has known the prospective Probationary Member for a minimum of 3 years. The eligibility of a person to support such an application shall be adjudged solely by the Committee;*

(iii) *supply a passport size photo of themselves for their Probation Card;*

(iv) **be sponsored by a Full Club Member;*

(v) *pay the set Range Fee on each visit;*

(vi) **serve a probationary period of not less than 3 months, under the personal supervision of an appointed Range Officer or a Full Member who holds a FAC., during which time he/she will be required to visit The Club on a regular basis and through regular training become proficient in the safe handling of all types and calibres of firearms that The Club may provide. Having completed the probationary period to the satisfaction of the Committee he/she may be invited to become a Full Member. The Club may withdraw the invitation should it not be accepted within a period of 4 weeks.*

(D) ***Junior Members** - Junior Members will only be accepted with the written permission of their parents or guardians who will also be expected to attend the range prior to their child/children being permitted to handle firearms or ammunition. Junior Members will undergo a probationary period of 3 months during which they will be supervised at all times by a Range Officer appointed by the Committee. The age range for Junior Members will be 14 to 17 whereafter they will be eligible to apply for Full Membership in the usual manner. Junior Members will only have access to the range at specified times and under supervision of the afore-mentioned Range Officer.

(E) **Airgun Members** - Airgun Members will be entitled to use The Club's social facilities and will have access to the ranges for shooting airguns subject to the instructions of the Chairman or a duly authorised delegate but those persons shall if they wish to handle firearms or ammunition, and are not already Full Members, will be bound by the preceding requirements of Probationary Membership. There will be no additional subscription payable by Full Members wishing to use this facility.

(F) ***Honorary Members** - Honorary Membership may be offered to a person of suitable merit at the discretion of The Club, but that person shall, if he/she wishes to handle firearms or ammunition and if not already a Full Member, be bound by the preceding requirements of Probationary Membership. The position of Club Solicitor and Club Caretaker shall be official honorary positions.

(G) ***Social Members** - Social Members shall be any person who is elected as such and his/her use of The

Club's social facilities shall be restricted to the bar/lounge, toilet areas and outside facilities as shall from time to time be made available for such purposes.

(H) ***Guest Members** - Guest Members may, on signing the register and payment of the current range fee, use The Club's facilities. A Guest Member shall prove full current Membership of another shooting club or fall within the definition of a 'Guest' under the Firearms Acts. They shall obey The Club Rules at all times and may be required to prove their competence in safe gun handling. Where applicable, Guest Members will be expected to produce their FACs for inspection if required to do so by a Club official. The number of such visits may be limited by The Club. Guest Members falling within this category may possess a firearm and ammunition on The Club premises under the constant supervision of an appointed Range Officer.

(i) *The number of visits by Guest Members shall not exceed that limited by the Firearms Acts.*

(ii) *It will be the responsibility of the Club Member who invites the Guest to notify a Club official of the visit prior to the Guest being admitted to The Club premises.*

(iii) **Where applicable, the Police shall be given reasonable notice of 'Guest' visits by the Chairman or Secretary.*

(I) **Lifetime Full Membership** shall be awarded to any Full Member who, in the opinion of the Committee, has made an outstanding contribution to the well-being of the Club and/or has paid the required lifetime membership fee.

All categories of Member shall,

(i) *have the duty to notify the Secretary of any change of their address;*

(ii) *obey all of The Club Rules;*

(iii) *remain in the category in which he/she has joined until officially transferred.*

4.10 No category of Member shall, by their actions or inactions outside or on The Club premises, do anything to bring the reputation of The Club into disrepute. In case of any doubt they shall immediately contact the Chairman in an emergency or otherwise in writing.

4.11 Acceptance of Membership of whatever category shall entail full acceptance of The Club's Rules and Constitution, the interpretation of which shall be the sole prerogative of the Committee and shall not be open to challenge in any way by any Member. All Members will be deemed to have read and understood The Club's Rules and Constitution.

5. SUBSCRIPTIONS - All categories of Member shall have the obligation to pay the appropriate Club Subscriptions without the necessity of any written notice. Subscriptions are due as described in CONSTITUTION above, and any Probationary Member becoming a Full Member after the beginning of the fiscal year shall pay 1/12 of the subscription rate multiplied by the number of months remaining in that year. This shall be calculated from the date the Probationary Member becomes eligible to join The Club as a Full Member.

5.1 Any portion of the subscription that has been added for a particular purpose, e.g. Building Fund, shall be payable in full.

5.2 Any Member failing to renew their subscription by 1st April will be removed from The Club's Register, and, where appropriate, written notice given to the *local Chief Constable.

5.3 Only a Full Member whose name appears on The Club's Register may cite The Club in their application for a grant or renewal of a Firearms Certificate.

5.4 Social Members, Full Members aged 18 and over and in full time education will be liable to pay a subscription of an amount which shall be determined annually by the Committee. Junior Members will be exempt from The Club subscription but will be expected to pay an appropriate range fee on each visit.

CLUB OFFICERS

6. **PRESIDENT** - This position may be offered to a person of suitable merit at the discretion of The Club, but that person shall, if they wish to handle firearms or ammunition, and if not already a Full Member, be bound by the preceding requirements of Probationary Membership and shall hold office at the discretion of the Committee.

7. **CHAIRMAN** - The Chairman of The Club shall be authorised by these Rules, the duty of ensuring so far as he/she can that The Club's Rules are carried out, and that at all times The Club's premises shall be used in the manner that is reasonably expected for their use. Any powers that he/she may wish to use in respect of his/her duty may be delegated by him/her to any other Full Members in writing, specifying such powers.

7.1 The Chairman is Chairman of both The Club and the Committee.

7(a) **VICE-CHAIRMAN** – The Vice-Chairman's post will be offered to an elected Committee Member as the Committee may in its absolute discretion decide.

8. **TREASURER** - The Treasurer shall be responsible to the Committee for all assets of The Club and produce a monthly statement to be made available at Committee Meetings. Also to submit at the Annual General Meeting an independent audited account for The Club's finances and assets and shall be appointed annually or on a temporary basis until the next AGM and shall be personally responsible to The Club for all the assets of The Club in his/her possession and shall deliver the same to the Committee upon a written request forthwith.

8(a) The Committee shall authorise the Treasurer to open and operate a bank account in the name of the Chairman and Treasurer and all cheques drawn thereon shall be signed by either person or the Secretary so that 2 signatures are necessary on all cheques and the bank shall be notified accordingly.

8(b) The Treasurer and Chairman shall be responsible to The Club and Committee for the proper investment of The Club funds until such time as they are needed for general use and it shall be their duty to obtain reasonable interest rates on such investments, and at the AGM produce a certified copy of the auditor's verification of The Club's assets.

8(c) The books and all documents relating to The Club shall be the property of The Club and shall be handed over to the Committee upon request.

8(d) The auditor shall hold professional qualifications and shall be appointed at the AGM.

8(e) The Club shall be run as a non-profit making organization and all profits shall be re-invested into the proper running of the Club and maintenance of any premises and/or ranges to which it has access. No Member or Officer shall receive remuneration other than properly incurred expenses, which shall only be paid on production of a valid receipt and after ratification by the Committee. Exceptionally, remuneration may be paid to any person, or persons, employed by the Club (regardless as to whether or not the person so employed is a Club member) in connection with the day to day running of the Club's servery and social facilities. The level of any such remuneration to be agreed by the Committee.

9. **SECRETARY** - The Secretary shall have the duty of carrying out all the secretarial work as required by the Committee, and shall of his/her own accord give not less than 21 days notice of an AGM or EGM to Members of The Club by delivering a copy of each notice to each and every Full Member, by ordinary post and/or by electronic mail or text to the last known registered electronic mail or text number or postal address of each Full Member and by posting a notice thereof on the notice board of each and every building in which The Club's functions are carried out. Upon request the Secretary shall hand, to any person designated in writing by the Committee, all The Club's correspondence upon demand and shall be personally responsible for the safe custody thereof.

9.1 No one may enter into correspondence on behalf of The Club without the prior approval of the Secretary. The Secretary shall be provided with copies of all replies to such correspondence. The Secretary shall keep a full record of all correspondence and report such at the next Committee Meeting. The Club's records shall be made available to Officers of The Club on request.

10. **COMMITTEE** - Committee Members shall be elected from the ranks of Full Members only to serve the best interests of The Club at all times. Committee Meetings shall be held monthly and a minimum of 3 Committee Members (including Officers) shall constitute a quorum. Prior to the Annual General Meeting, Committee Members' attendances shall be published. Minutes of Committee Meetings shall be published and available to Members. Any Member may be co-opted onto the Committee either for a single Meeting or more, but a co-opted Committee Member shall have no voting rights at Committee Meetings.

10.1 The Committee Members shall be personally responsible to The Club for the proper conduct of The Club and if so required by the Chairman or Secretary, on the instructions of the Committee, shall vacate office.

10.2 The Committee Members shall elect, from their number, a Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer. A Vice-Chairman may be appointed in accordance with Rule 7(a) above.

10.3 The Committee Members shall elect, from their number, a sub-committee of a minimum 3 Members to specifically and solely administer any gaming machines, deal with any public entertainment licences or deal with any other matter which may be a requirement of enacted licensing legislation.

11. ***TRUSTEES** - Trustees shall be elected by the Committee for a specified purpose as and when they

may be required by The Club, but those Trustees wishing to handle firearms or ammunition. If not already a Full Member of The Club shall be bound by the preceding requirements of Probationary Membership. Trustees may attend The Club's Committee Meetings.

12. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

12.1 An AGM will be held once every year and not more than 15 months shall elapse without an AGM. The quorum for an AGM or EGM shall be 10 Full Members.

The specific business of an AGM shall be:-

(i) *The ratification of the minutes of the previous AGM*

(ii) *Matters arising (replies shall be given in Officers' Reports)*

(iii) *The presentation of reports from Officers of The Club*

(iv) *Consideration of any changes to the Rules and Constitution of The Club or any matters connected therewith*

(v) *Any Special Motions for which the proper notice has been served*

(vi) *The resignation of the Officers and Committee of The Club*

(vii) *The election of the COMMITTEE by show of hands*

(viii) *Prize giving and special announcements*

12.2 At the AGM or any EGM the specific business of the meeting shall be conducted by those Full Members present, but any special motion shall not be binding on The Club unless there shall be a minimum of 20% of Full Members present, and the majority vote shall decide the motion.

12.3 **Special Motions** shall be received no later than **14** days before an AGM and **nominations for Committee posts** shall be received no later than **14** days before an AGM or EGM.

12.4 The Secretary or Chairman of The Club shall be required to call an EGM within 14 days of a request to that effect by the Committee or on the written request of not less than 6 Full Members specifying the matters to be discussed at the EGM. Proper notice shall be given to all Full Members of any such AGM and the matters to be considered.

12.5 In the event of a quorum for an AGM or EGM not being attained the meeting shall be adjourned for a period of two weeks and without further notice all those present at the reconvened meeting shall form a quorum for the purposes of discussing all the business normally conducted at such a meeting.

12.6 **WINDING UP** - Full Members may vote to wind up the Club if not less than three quarters of those present and voting support that proposal at a properly convened AGM or EGM. The Committee will then be responsible for the orderly winding up of The Club's affairs. After settling all liabilities of The Club, the Committee shall dispose of the net assets to one or more of the following:-

(i) to another club with similar sports purposes which is a charity and/or

(ii) to another club with similar purposes which is a registered CASC and/or

(iii) to The Club's national governing body for use by them for related community sports.

CLUB PREMISES

13. The Club premises shall be open from time to time during the hours and the places as may be defined by the Committee.

13.1 No full camouflage clothing will be worn by any Member whilst on The Club premises.

14. There shall be an entrance fee, the amount thereof shall be fixed by the Committee.

15. All Members must wear their **identity cards** at all times whilst on The Club premises and shall not be entitled to allow his/her Club Membership to be transferred or used by any other person whether or not such a person shall be a Member.

(Rule 16 deleted following AGM 5 January 2006)

DISCIPLINARY MATTERS

17. Members may be requested to leave the premises at any time for any specific breach of any of The Club Rules and upon being requested to do so by the Chairman or his delegate shall not be re-admitted to The Club premises (except, and only, to appear before the Committee) until such time as any disciplinary proceedings have been concluded to the satisfaction of the Committee and the Member in question has been notified of the Committee's decision by the Chairman or Secretary.

17(a) In the event of such a request being made the Chairman or his delegate may within 24 hours serve a notice in writing upon a Member so requested to leave, specifying the nature of the complaint together with a copy thereof, and should he do so he must within 3 days send a copy to the Secretary and Treasurer of The Club, and on receipt by the Secretary of such a notice he shall cause a Committee Meeting to be convened within 7 days of receipt of such a notice and the offending Member shall have the right to attend such Meeting and make such representation as the Chairman of that Meeting may from time to time allow.

17(b) The purpose of the Meeting shall be for the Committee to decide whether or not the Membership of such Member shall cease, which shall be in the Committee's absolute discretion, and such decision shall be final and not the subject of appeal in any way. The Committee on this occasion shall be entitled to call such other Members as it may, in its sole discretion without limitation, to explain details of the incident in its absolute discretion and shall make its decision in the absence of all Members.

17(c) The Committee shall have the absolute power to expel any Member whomsoever whose conduct (whether by act or omission) it considers to be contrary to the best interests of The Club or detrimental to the good name of the sport of shooting. The Member shall be summoned to appear before the Committee to explain any alleged misconduct before any decision for expulsion is taken and shall be entitled to be accompanied at the Committee Meeting by one other Member if so desired.

17(d) Should the Committee decide to revoke the Membership of any Member at any time the

subscription for the remaining part of the then current year shall be forfeited to The Club and no part thereof shall be repaid to such a Member and the Committee shall be entitled to take such action without any explanation to any Member, and such Members shall have no right to such explanation and no right to take any action in respect thereof.

18. In any interpretation of The Club Rules and Constitution the decision of the Committee shall be final and binding on all Members without question.

RANGE RULES

19. Members shall be subject to NRA rules in respect of their conduct and behaviour whilst on Club ranges.

20. *Ammunition purchased from The Club shall not be removed from The Club unless entered on the purchaser's Firearms Certificate.

21. Membership Identity cards shall be worn on all Club ranges at all times.

22. All obligatory warning signs will be displayed when shooting is in progress, and shall be observed by Members.

23. The Committee will appoint a suitable Full Member(s) to act as Range Officer(s) on Club Evenings, for competitions and Guest Days. In all other circumstances Members must, whilst using any Club range, appoint a competent Full Member as a Range Officer, unless alone in which case a Full Member may act as his/her own Range Officer, Range Standing Orders permitting.

24. It shall be the Range Officer's duty to call a 'Cease Fire' when so requested or when necessary for safety purposes, and this call shall be observed by all shooters without exception.

25. The Range Officer will also be responsible for enforcing any and all Club Rules including Range Standing Orders whilst engaged in this role.

26. The number of shooters using/on the firing point shall not exceed the number permitted by The Club's Safety Certificate.

27. Factory loaded ammunition used on The Club ranges shall not exceed either the manufacturers' recommendations nor the guns' prescribed limitations, neither shall it exceed the Range's Safety Certificate limitations.

28. Hand loaded ammunition used on The Club's ranges shall not exceed the loading limitations specified by the manufacturer of the components nor the guns' prescribed limitations, neither shall it exceed the range's Safety Certificate limitations. Responsibility for such handloading is entirely that of the user and in case of any doubt the user should seek the appointed Range Officer's advice whose decision in the matter shall be final.

29. Ammunition used on The Club ranges shall be appropriate to the gun it is used in, and at no time liable to put the shooters or others at risk and shall be suitable for the range it is used on.

30. Any Member using The Club's ranges shall only shoot targets provided by or approved by The Club.

31. No spectators nor shooters not actively engaged in shooting will be permitted on the firing point whilst shooting is in progress.

32. Weapons shall remain unloaded until permission to load is given by the Range Officer. All weapons must be pointed in a safe direction **AT ALL TIMES**, and actions will be opened and guns unloaded and proved empty when not in use and when a 'Cease Fire' is in operation.

33. *The Range Officer shall be responsible for ensuring that the legal requirements relating to Probationary and Guest Members as specified under MEMBERSHIP are met.

34. Any Member who feels that he/she is unable to abide by the above Rules by virtue of his/her lack of experience shall consult an experienced Full Member for advice.

35. Any range to which The Club has legal and properly authorised access shall be used in such a manner that will not infringe any additional requirements, legal or military, appertaining to the relevant Range Safety Certificate(s). Also any range shall be left in a clean and safe condition.

36. All participating Members of The Club's Clay Pigeon Section shall become, and remain during their participating membership of the Section, members of the British Association for Shooting and Conservation (BASC) in the appropriate category. Guests of the Section participating in any clay pigeon shoot will be recorded contemporaneously at the time of the respective shoot.

37. Under no circumstances whatsoever shall any category of member pass beyond the limits over which The Club has permission to shoot, except to recover clay pigeon pick-ups, game or wildfowl shot on or over the Club's land and then only with the previous consent of the adjoining occupier and/or owner; in any such case the member(s) gun(s) shall be left securely within the boundaries of the land over which The Club has permission to shoot.

38. Any member witnessing a breach of The Club Rules WILL notify a Club official at the earliest opportunity.

39. Failure to comply with any of The Club Rules and Constitution shall be referred to the Chairman under Rule 17.

40. No Member or Guest shall shoot on any of the ranges to which the Club has access whilst under the influence of alcohol or impaired by the use of drugs.

41. The use of The Club's ranges shall be taken as an acceptance of the above Rules.

A copy of these Rules will be supplied to all categories of members.

Heating shall be provided on the indoor firing points, the type to be at the discretion of the Committee.

SERVERY/LOUNGE AREA RULES

42. All members' or visitors' guns will be handed over the servery counter for storage while the member or visitor is using the Club's lounge and social facilities. It will be the respective owner's responsibility to ensure that their gun(s) is unloaded before handing over for storage and The Club will not be held responsible for any loss or damage caused during such storage.

43. No guns or ammunition will be handled or displayed overtly on The Club premises other than in the armoury or on the ranges.

44. Any infringement of these Rules will be reported as required by Rules 38 and 39.

MISCELLANEOUS

45. Subject to any conditions attached to any enacted licensing legislation or legal requirement of the Firearms Acts the following persons shall be admitted to The Club's social facilities:-

(i) Members of any athletic, sports, shooting or duly registered club or organisation whose members have been invited to The Club by or on behalf of the Committee;

(ii) any relative of a Member of The Club who is bona fide staying with the Member on holiday, for the weekend or other temporary period and is accompanied into The Club by the Member or who enters The Club to meet the Member who is already in The Club;

(iii) persons invited to visit The Club by or on behalf of the Committee on a specific date - such visits to be notified to the Police if falling within the definition of a 'Guest Day' under the Firearms Acts;

(iv) persons attending a family or other organised function held at The Club with the express permission of the Committee (e.g. family birthday, anniversary, engagement, wedding, christening or retirement party or a fund raising event for The Club's funds or for charity);

always provided that the conduct of such persons shall be the responsibility of either the introducing Member or of the organisers of a function, that all non-members sign the Visitors Book on entry to The Club premises and at no time shall any person invited or allowed on the premises for the purposes of clause (iv) herein handle any firearm or ammunition or go within the area reserved for the proper use of those items under any circumstances.

Delegated Powers Relating Licensing

46. The Committee shall have emergency delegated powers to alter any of the Club Rules and Constitution to meet any requirement of the courts or licensing authorities with specific regard to formal licensing requirements. Any such alteration will be notified only by way of a notice which shall be posted on The Club notice board and shall, if signed by the Chairman, have effect without being brought to the specific attention of each Member until the next AGM.

The following is not part of the Rules and Constitution of The Club.

"We, the undersigned, hereby certify that this is true and current copy of the Club's Rules and Constitution as agreed and amended at the Annual General Meeting held on 26 January 2017"

Lester Bradley (Chairman)

Date

Steve Davidson (Secretary)

Date